
 

 

 

 

 
 

Planning Commission 

Meeting Packet 
 

FOR 

 

January 28, 2014 
At 7 PM 

 
Sherwood City Hall 

22560 SW Pine Street 

Sherwood, Oregon 

 
 

 

 



 

Meeting documents may be found on the City of Sherwood website or by contacting the Planning Staff at 503-925-2308. 

City of Sherwood 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

Sherwood City Hall  

22560 SW Pine Street 

Sherwood, OR  97140 

January 28, 2014 – 7 PM 

 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call  

2. Agenda Review 

3.  Consent Agenda 

 a. December 10, 2013 Planning Commission Minutes 

4. Council Liaison Announcements (Mayor Middleton) 

5.  Staff Announcements (Brad Kilby) 

6. Community Comments  

7. Old Business  

a. Public Hearing (Continued) - PA 13-03 Transportation System Plan 

Amendment for Adams Avenue North (Brad Kilby)  
 

The Planning Commission will consider a proposal, by Washington County, to 

amend the Transportation System Plan and Comprehensive Plan to extend Adams 

Avenue (near Home Depot) to the west side of Highway 99W.  The street 

extension is intended to address capacity and safety issues in the area, and to 

designate the functional classification of Adams Avenue to a collector status road.  

The street is currently not shown or designated in the City TSP 

b. Public Hearing (Continued) - PA 13-04 Transportation System Plan 

Amendment for Baler Way  (Brad Kilby)  

The Planning Commission will consider a proposal, by Washington County, to 

amend the Transportation System Plan and Comprehensive Plan to extend Baler 

Way north of Tualatin Sherwood Road into the area known as the Adams Avenue 

North Concept Plan area.  The street extension is intended to address capacity and 

safety issues in the area, and to designate the functional classification of Baler 

Way to a collector status road.  The street is currently not shown or designated in 

the City TSP. 

9. Planning Commission Announcements  

10.  Adjourn  

 

Planning Commission  Meeting 
January 28, 2014

1



 

 

Consent Agenda 

   

Planning Commission  Meeting 
January 28, 2014

2



  
Planning Commission DRAFT Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2013 

Page 1 of 10 

 

City of Sherwood, Oregon 

Planning Commission 

Work Session Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2013 

 

Planning Commission Members Present:    Staff Present:  

Chair Jean Simson   Julia Hajduk, Community Development Director  

Commissioner Michael Cary      Brad Kilby, Planning Manager 

Commissioner John Clifford      Bob Galati, City Engineer 

Commissioner Lisa Walker   Kirsten Allen, Planning Dept. Program Coordinator

  

    

Planning Commission Members Absent:     

Commissioner Beth Cooke     

Vice Chair James Copfer     

Commissioner Russell Griffin   

 

Council Members Present:     Legal Counsel:  

Mayor Bill Middleton  None 

 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

 

Chair Simson called the meeting to order at 7:03 pm.   

2. Agenda Review 

 

The agenda consisted of the Consent Agenda and two public hearings PA 13-03 and PA 13-04.   

3. Consent Agenda:    

a. October 8, 2013 Planning Commission Minutes 

b. October 22, 2013 Planning Commission Minutes 

 

Motion: From Commissioner Lisa Walker to approve the consent Agenda for October 8 and 

October 22, 2013. Seconded by Commissioner Michael Cary.  All present planning 

commissioners in favor (Vice Chair Copfer and Commissioners Cooke and Griffin were absent). 

4. Council Liaison Announcements 

 

Mayor Middleton had no announcements and commented on the previous Council Meeting which was 

an appreciation dinner for City Boards and Commissions where each commission reported back to the 

Council about the year’s accomplishments and goals.    

 

 

Planning Commission  Meeting 
January 28, 2014

3



  
Planning Commission DRAFT Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2013 

Page 2 of 10 

 

5. Staff Announcements 

 

Brad Kilby, Planning Manager, announced a Tri-Met community meeting that would be held on 

January 16, 2014 in the Community Room at City Hall from 6:30-8:30 pm.  He said there was a link 

on the city website at www.sherwoodoregon.gov.  

Brad reminded the Commission that the second Planning Commission Meeting for December would 

be held on December 18, 2013 and would include a public hearing on the rezoning and text 

amendment  for a piece of property off of Meinecke Road. He said there was also a full agenda for the 

January 14, 2014 Planning Commission meeting. 

Brad informed the Commission that Commissioner Griffin was unable to continue as the liaison to the 

Citizen’s Advisory Committee for the Transportation System Plan Update and Chair Simson would be 

taking his place.  The next meeting would be on December 11, 2013 to discuss needs, opportunities, 

constraints, and tools with a public Open House the following night at the Police Station on December 

12, 2013 at 6:00 pm.   

6. Community Comments 

Robert James Claus, Sherwood resident commented regarding a recall petition and said that it was 

not the horrendous act that it is being taken as because of the rights of the people.  He spoke of Valley 

Forge, General Washington, and reasons that this country is great.  Mr. Claus commented on the 

creation of an Urban Boundary line, through an enabling statute, and named the only franchised people 

that can vote and create public policy as the voters.  He said the representative democracy speaks for 

the public and if not they can be recalled. Mr. Claus commented regarding the right to vote being a 

fundamental American civil right and on the City recorder’s actions regarding a recall petition. He said 

that bureaucrats who are not elected, and beyond recall, do not set public policy and commented 

regarding natural probable consequences. Mr. Claus commented that when people try to represent 

nothing but democracy there are obstacles and misunderstanding and America is about citizens telling 

their representatives what they want.   

Chair Simson explained that one of the Commissioners had to recuse himself for the public hearing 

regarding PA 13-03 and there would not be a quorum.   She amended the agenda so that the public 

hearing for PA 13-04 would be heard first.   

7. New Business  

 

b. Public Hearing - PA 13-04 Transportation System Plan Amendment for Baler  

Chair Simson read the public hearing statement for a legislative hearing and asked how much time the 

applicant would have to testimony. 

Julia Hajduk, Community Development Director instructed that the rules were a little different for a 

legislative action but the applicant would generally receive thirty minutes to split between initial 

presentation and rebuttal.   

Chair Simson asked for any conflicts of interest or bias and disclosed that she had attended one of the 

open houses.   Receiving no other comments, she asked for a staff report.  

Planning Commission  Meeting 
January 28, 2014

4

http://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/


  
Planning Commission DRAFT Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2013 

Page 3 of 10 

 

Brad Kilby said PA 13-04 was an amendment to SW Baler Way and gave a presentation (see record, 

Exhibit 1).  He pointed to a blue dashed line on a map and indicated that the applicant, Washington 

County, was proposing to show that line on the Transportation System Plan Functional Map and put it 

in the Transportation System Plan (TSP) as a future collector street connection.  Brad showed a white 

dotted line extending from there connecting into the future Langer Farms Parkway to the north.   

Brad said there are several properties that would be affected by the change, that Portland General 

Electric owns the property and that there are limitations associated with having power lines and 

easements across it.  Brad stated that Washington County is proposing to identify the future location of 

the collector in the TSP for the purpose of providing access to the properties, addressing capacity and 

safety issues in the area, and is a component of the widening of Tualatin Sherwood Road.   

Brad reminded the Commission of the Adams Avenue North Concept Plan adopted in 2009 and said 

the property in the area is zoned Office Commercial, General Commercial and Light Industrial.  He 

showed a drawing of the existing Transportation System Functional Plan that shows an extension of 

Langer Farms Parkway and said the map would be amended to include the proposed collector.    

Brad commented that this amendment was one way to help mitigate removal of the signal on Tualatin 

Sherwood Road. He explained that a collector street has to tie into a collector street and the number of 

local streets that come off of a collector street, like Tualatin Sherwood Road, is limited.  The existing 

Baler Way is also a collector street.    

Brad showed the forecasted traffic generation to be 6000 average daily trips and commented that the 

estimate might be low because of the limitations of the power lines around the property.  He said that 

staff recommends that the Planning Commission forward a recommendation of approval to the City 

Council to place the proposed collector onto the City’s Transportation System Functional 

Classification Map.   

Chair Simson asked if this was part of getting five lanes to Teton Avenue in Tualatin and asked why 

the proposed street is a collector street.   

Brad responded that the City tries to connect collector streets to collector streets and to limit the 

number of local streets that come off of an arterial or collector street. He added that if the street is 

constructed as a collector, the developer can receive System Development Charge credits which local 

streets do not and per the zoning it makes sense to have a higher classification of streets going through 

the area.   

Chair Simson turned the time over for the applicant’s presentation. 

Stefanie Slyman, Harper Houf Peterson Regelis (HHPR) and applicant’s representative introduced 

several staff members present to answer questions about the proposal; Russ Knoebel, Principal 

Engineer with Washington County; Dan Erpenbach, Washington County Engineer; Cortney Duke-

Driessen, Washington County Counsel; Ben Austin, Project Manager HHPR; Peter Coffey, DKS 

Associates Traffic Consultant.  Ms. Slyman began a presentation (see record, Exhibit 2).  She 

announced that only three members of the team would speak and explained that the process started on 

July 17, 2013 when a neighborhood meeting was held where all property owners within 1000 ft. of the 

proposed amendment were invited and 72 people were in attendance.  Ms. Slyman said they outlined 

the proposal for PA 13-03 and PA 13-04 at the meeting and heard the concerns from residents that 

Planning Commission  Meeting 
January 28, 2014

5



  
Planning Commission DRAFT Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2013 

Page 4 of 10 

 

pertained mostly to the Adams Avenue proposal.  She declared that the applicant met twice with City 

staff to understand their issues and ensure that all of the approval criteria were addressed in the 

application.  Ms. Slyman told that public notices had been made and informed that City staff went a 

step further to notify local businesses about the hearing in order to make sure the community was 

aware.  Ms. Slyman recounted that the Planning Commission’s role was to make a recommendation to 

City Council and thanked staff for a positive recommendation.  She turned the time over to County 

staff.   

Russ Knoebel, Washington County said he wanted to clarify that Baler Way will be part of the 

solution to the capacity and safety needs in the area. He said that when the County started the Tualatin 

Road Project they found that the TSP contained solutions that needed to be looked at moving forward 

and the County was taking a four pronged approach to the project: 

 Widen Tualatin Sherwood Road from Langer Farms Parkway to Borchers Drive 

 Intelligent traffic System- smart signals that “talk” to each other to make the corridor function 

better 

 Manage access along Tualatin Sherwood Road and Roy Rogers Road 

 Create off corridor circulation to provide additional alternatives to taking Tualatin Sherwood Road 

through the area.    

   

Peter Coffey, DKS Associates stated that the findings of the traffic analysis are documented in the 

memorandum dated September 17, 2013 (see application materials) and explained that the purpose of 

the amendment was to develop system connectivity to improve the safety and operation of the Tualatin 

Sherwood Corridor.  Mr. Coffey commented that the proposed amendment was consistent with 

Sherwood’s TSP, North Adams Concept Plan, I-5 99 Connector Study and the Transportation Planning 

Rule.  He described that the Transportation Planning Rule assures that traffic amendments or changes 

to the road system cannot make things worse and mobility targets in the area have to be met.   

Mr. Coffey explained that the road should be designated a collector for connectivity purposes and that 

local streets or private driveways should not intersect with arterial roadways such as Tualatin 

Sherwood.  Providing roadway networks can facilitate access and circulation to get onto arterial roads 

safely at signalized intersections.  Mr. Coffey said the proposed Baler Way extension heads in a 

north/south direction and then in an east west direction. He specified that the proposed east west street 

ties into a connection that was identified in the I-5/ 99 Connector Study.   

Chair Simson enquired about the statement on page 6 of the staff report that reads we would have to 

evaluate and possibly relocate existing access locations for the purposes of improving safety along the 

future collector and asked why a collector was being proposed and what the City is giving up to do it. 

Mr. Coffey responded that the traffic analysis showed slight improvements in the area with a 

projection that it will carry around 6000 cars per day which is appropriate for a collector street.  He 

expressed that the ideal for this area was to have a collector where local streets feed into collectors and 

collectors feed into arterials as opposed to local streets going straight to the arterials.    

Chair Simson asked for public testimony with proponents first and then opponents of the application.  

Jim Morse, Lake Oswego resident, property owner in Sherwood, commented that he owned the 

property behind Les Schwab and had developed the theater area about fifteen years ago when Tualatin 

Planning Commission  Meeting 
January 28, 2014

6



  
Planning Commission DRAFT Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2013 

Page 5 of 10 

 

Sherwood Road was put in.  Mr. Morse explained that a right in, right out access on 99W was denied 

by the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT), at that time, with the purpose of keeping traffic 

moving.  He remarked that it was left out for good reason and did not feel that it should be allowed 

now.  Mr. Morse asserted that the light at the theater was put in based on a thought process and 

available information fifteen years ago.  He said the County was trying to create back roads to move 

people to the commercial areas and off of the main arterials.  Mr. Morse said he was a proponent of the 

proposed road and would be willing to work with the county to make that roadway happen.  Mr. Morse 

added that when the proposed road ties into [Langer Farms Parkway] there will be a nice way to get 

into the shopping district without interfering with the high volume traffic at Tualatin Sherwood and 

99W.  He said Washington County’s proposal attempts to take cars off the main access, to keep traffic 

moving, and to alleviate rear end collisions that happen on that road.    

Nancy Taylor, Sherwood resident said she opposed the Transportation System Amendment because 

she did not think it would alleviate the current traffic chaos today nor in 2035.  She commented that 

only a widening to five lanes for the entire way from Sherwood to Tualatin will alleviate the problem.  

Ms. Taylor commented that a small cut through would not make big difference and expressed that 

taking out the light by the theater does not make sense to her.  Ms. Taylor said that as a resident she 

feels strongly. She explained that when Roy Rogers Road opened people began to cut through her 

neighborhood to avoid traffic and get to their homes faster.  Ms. Taylor suggested that Washington 

County’s proposal was pure folly and asked why the City was not focusing on a bypass highway that 

would make a real difference.  She related that she went to the neighbor meeting for the project and 

questioned how this would help Sherwood and take care of current traffic jams or improve 

bicycle/front yard safety.  Ms. Taylor stated that when the big box store opens traffic in Sherwood will 

be unbearable and said we should go back to the drawing board to find ways to alleviate the traffic; not 

draw lines and spend taxpayer money on something that might take 1% off of a highway.   

Robert James Claus, Sherwood resident commented regarding promoting land values for residents 

outside of town and commented that this project resulted from a request by Mayor Keith Mays to Tom 

Brian five years ago when they turned the area into the Town Square (Note: Tom Brian served as 

Washington County Commission Chair from 1998 to 2010).  Mr. Claus commented that any 

responsible transportation engineer would have required the streets to change and said changes would 

not be able to be made because of litigation regarding the street by the Thousand Friends of Oregon.   

Mr. Claus commented regarding the application for the shopping center where Walmart is currently 

building.  He said a generic traffic study was provided and a peak of 37,000 cars was more than the 

road can carry.  Mr. Claus commented regarding zone changes and that this street change was not 

wanted nor was it in the general plan.  Mr. Claus said the Home Depot and businesses across the street 

were illegal where Retail was put in a Light Industrial zone.  He asked the Commission to find out how 

to stop it and asked that another traffic study be performed. He suggested that Home Depot and the 

businesses near there be told they are in the wrong zone and be made to leave, consequently solving 

the problem of traffic generators.  He asked what would happen if a new traffic study indicated that it 

would not work and said that he had asked County Commissioner Brian why the County did not 

protest Walmart because the road pattern would have to change.  Mr. Claus said Mr. Brian’s response 

was that it was not his problem.  Mr. Claus said the Commission should find ways to solve the 

problem, not expend it, because it was nothing but MSTIP fees, raising money, and illegal uses.   

Planning Commission  Meeting 
January 28, 2014

7



  
Planning Commission DRAFT Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2013 

Page 6 of 10 

 

Phil Grillo, Davis Wright Tremaine LLP, on behalf of TakFal Properties gave a letter to the Planning 

Commission (see record, PA 13-04 Exhibit C) and explained that on November 23, 2013 they met with 

representatives of the Oregon Department of Transportation, and found that ODOT is willing to 

approve a right in access off of Hwy 99W into the Sherwood Cinema Center (property owned by his 

client, TakFal).  Mr. Grillo said this was very good news and thanked the City for encouraging ODOT 

to reconsider a long standing opposition to that access.  He recounted that the conservative estimate of 

putting in an access is about $700,000 and they were looking at creative ways to try and make that 

happen.  Mr. Grillo commented that the property owner is in general support of the County’s TSP 

amendment and holds the  position that there needs to be left turn lanes and the light remain unless 

another option such as a right in access off of Hwy 99W and full access off of Baler Way is allowed.  

He said there are a number of easements that benefit the TakFal property and which are in the right 

location or the right width.  Mr. Grillo said he needed to be able to reach an agreement with the County 

on what alternative access is going to look like before the City finalizes this application and asked the 

Commission to delay action to the first or second Planning Commission meeting in January 2014.   

Mr. Grillo explained that that there were two 25 foot wide accesses.  One in front of the Les Schwab 

and one on the southern part of Mr. Morse’s property which are not wide enough to accommodate a 

full access; three lanes are needed with associated improvements like landscaping and sidewalks.   Mr. 

Grillo commented that the second easement is not in the ideal location for the Baler Way extension and 

said it may be better to have the access to the north in order to flow into the extension of the proposed 

east west street as it turns.   

Chair Simson noted that there was an official request for a continuation and the Planning Commission 

was obligated to consider it.   

Mr. Grillo commented that he hoped to meet with the County and City before the end of the year and 

ensured an update at a future Planning Commission Meeting to keep them informed.   Chair Simson 

clarified that any agreement made [between TakFal and] the County would be separate from the TSP 

Amendment before the Commission excepting that the Commission would consider accesses and how 

they would benefit the community and keep these properties developed and active. 

Julia commented that her understanding was that [TakFal] was generally supportive of the proposal, 

but has concerns that they would like to have addressed.  She said that while the details are not directly 

relevant to the TSP amendment before the Commission TakFal would like time to get some details 

resolved with the County in order to be more certain of their support.    

Mr. Grillo responded that there was not enough evidence to conclude that there would be sufficient 

connectivity and access to their property and Baler Way.  He said that the County’s project is about 

relieving congestion and creating capacity away from Tualatin Sherwood Road, but the City’s TSP 

should include connections and access for properties. Mr. Grillo suggested the County is doing this in 

part because it will be necessary for mitigation for the loss of access that will be experienced.   

With no other requests to speak Chair Simson asked for applicant rebuttal and confirmed that the 

applicant had 20:55 remaining to testify.  

Russ Knoebel responded to Ms. Taylor’s comment that the TSP would not solve the problem by saying 

that Baler is not the only solution and that the County was looking at a combination of solutions as 

mentioned in his previous testimony.  He commented that if the other measures were not being utilized 

Planning Commission  Meeting 
January 28, 2014

8



  
Planning Commission DRAFT Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2013 

Page 7 of 10 

 

Tualatin Sherwood Road would need to be wider than five lanes in this area.  Mr. Knoebel stated that 

he participated in the I-5/ 99W Study and the cost to build it was estimated to be $400 million.  He 

added that the proposal was to amend the City’s TSP and when Baler Way is built it will likely save 

money because it is built into undeveloped areas.   

Mr. Knoebel remarked on having met with Mr. Grillo and said the discussion related to Washington 

County’s road project on Tualatin Sherwood Road and were not specific to the TSP Amendment.  He 

said that if Baler was in place in the future there has been discussions about how access can be 

provided to the shopping center and he did not think it was incumbent on the County to show access to 

Baler Way at this point.  Mr. Knoebel communicated that this application did not require the same 

detail as a development application.  He said that the he did not believe additional data could be 

provided in a short time frame and the discussion between property owners and the County would 

continue over the next six months regarding right of way and access issues.   Mr. Knoebel indicated 

that during the right of way process many questions would be answered and the concerns expressed by 

Mr. Grillo such as the functioning of the development, the development layout, or parking lot 

configuration would be addressed.   He said he hoped the Planning Commission did not expect that 

these matters could be managed in a thirty day time frame for a decision on a TSP amendment. 

Stephanie Slyman  added that the approval criteria does not require the level of detail that Mr. Grillo 

asserted was lacking and urged the Commission to look at the approval criteria, the findings made,  

and the existing traffic study that speak to what the approval criteria for this specific action were.  She 

said that details about access, design and alignments happen later and the Commission’s decision was 

about a line on the map.  Ms. Slyman said the County felt that there is enough evidence in the record 

and findings made for the Commission to make the recommendation for approval to the City Council 

for further consideration. 

Mr. Knoebel said the County would not be opposed to leaving the record open.   

Chair Simson commented that the Commission would follow the approval criteria and that it was her 

understanding that the Commission was obligated to accept a request for continuance at the first 

evidentiary hearing.  She did not believe that eight days was enough time to gather additional 

information for the applicant or the public and suggested a meeting in January 2014. Discussion 

followed with the following motion being received.   

Motion: From Commissioner Lisa Walker to continue public hearing PA 13-04 TSP Amendment 

for Baler Way to January 28, 2014. Seconded by Commissioner Michael Cary.  All present 

Planning Commissioners voted in favor (Vice Chair Copfer and Commissioners Cooke and 

Griffin were absent). 

Chair Simson call for a recess at 8:17 pm and reconvened at 8:20 pm. During the recess Commissioner 

James Copfer joined the meeting by telephone.   

a. Public Hearing - PA 13-03 Transportation System Plan Amendment for Adams Avenue North  

Chair Simson opened the public hearing by reading the public hearing statement for a legislative 

decision and reminded that the Planning Commission would be making a recommendation to City 

Council.  She asked if there was any bias or conflict of interest.  Commissioner Cary recused himself 

Planning Commission  Meeting 
January 28, 2014

9



  
Planning Commission DRAFT Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2013 

Page 8 of 10 

 

because he has a business that would be directly impacted by this decision and stepped down from the 

dais.   

Brad Kilby gave a presentation for PA 13-03 (see record, Exhibit 3) and said that the file name is 

Adams Avenue North but will be part of the Langer Farms Parkway extension north of Tualatin 

Sherwood Road to Hwy 99W.  He said the road would provide access to the properties behind the strip 

mall on the other side of Hwy 99W that includes the Anderson property and a storm water quality 

facility.   

Brad explained that the proposal identifies a location where a potential street would go and would be 

defined as the properties develop.  He said the County is proposing a collector street in the Sherwood’s 

Transportation System Plan that would go in the Functional Classification Plan for the purposes of 

providing access to the properties discussed and to address capacity and safety issues in the area.   

Brad explained the zoning and said he had received phone calls early in the application asking if the 

proposed street would connect with Borchers Drive, but that it was unlikely because of the cost of 

building a bridge over the nearby ravine. Brad reported that staff endorsed forwarding a 

recommendation of approval by the Planning commission to the City council to place a proposed 

collector onto the City’s Transportation Functional Classification Map for almost the identical reasons 

as discussed in the previous application.   

Chair Simson asked for questions for staff and asked for a verbal response from Commissioner Copfer.  

He did not have any. Chair Simson asked for testimony from the applicant and confirmed that 

Commissioner Copfer could hear the applicant after the applicant began her testimony.   

Stefanie Slyman, Harper Houf Peterson Regelis (HHPR) introduced staff and the consultant team 

members again: Russ Knoebel, Dan Erpenbach, and Cortney Duke-Driessen from Washington County, 

Ben Austin from HHPR, and Peter Coffey of DKS Associates Traffic Consultant.  Ms. Slyman 

commented that some of the information would be repeated because it is a second hearing and said 

there was neighborhood meeting for neighbors within one thousand feet of the proposal.  She 

recounted that many residents west of the proposed street extension were concerned about through 

connectivity to Borchers Drive, potential impacts to their neighborhood, impacts on the wildlife refuge, 

and the cost of crossing the ravine.   Ms. Slyman explained that the County then shortened the 

proposed length of the street to meet the goals for off corridor circulation.  She reviewed that City staff 

met with the applicant twice so staff understood what was being proposed to address issues early on 

and identify approval criteria for the planning commission to consider.  Ms. Slyman stated that public 

notice has been made, staff has recommended approval, and the planning Commission’s roll is to 

forward a recommendation to City council.   

Russ Knoebel, Principal Engineer for Washington County said that the County was looking for a 

combination of solutions in this corridor through widening Tualatin Sherwood Road and Roy Rogers 

Road, intelligent transportation system, managing accesses and allowing off corridor circulation.  He 

said the existing access on Roy Rogers Road is very close to the intersection at 99W and further 

development is likely to occur in the area to create additional trips.   

Peter Coffey, DKS Associates said the findings of the transportation analysis are documented in the 

September 17
th

 memorandum included in the application package.  He added that the purpose of the 

street extension was to develop access and to address capacity and safety issues by collecting all the 

Planning Commission  Meeting 
January 28, 2014

10



  
Planning Commission DRAFT Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2013 

Page 9 of 10 

 

traffic and providing safe access onto 99W at a signalized intersection.  Mr. Coffey explained that the 

analysis discussed the Transportation Planning Rule; verifying that the amendment does not degrade 

the transportation system.  He said the proposal is consistent with the TSP and provide consolidated 

access that allows development to occur in the area.   

Mr. Coffey confirmed Commissioner Clifford’s inquiries about access for the residential property on 

that corner by stating that the road would help facilitate access for all of the properties in the area.  

Russ Knoebel added that the current access  onto Roy Rogers Road is not preferable and when 

property owners comes in for development the County and the City will have a dialog as to where the 

best access to that property is.  Mr. Knoebel communicated that he could not say if the access will go 

away because [of the road widening], but the conversation can take place in the future.   When asked 

about the triangular piece of property, Mr. Knoebel responded that that piece of property did not have 

access at this point and likely are receiving it from the existing driveway and development of that 

property by itself would have limitations on right in/ right out access.   

Commissioner Walker received confirmation that access for the property owner was not an issue in 

this proposal.   

Chair Simson asked about the Bonneville Power Administration’s memo in the packet regarding 

development under their easement and asked if a collector road would be permitted under their power 

lines.   Stephanie Slyman responded that the Bonneville Power Administration indicated that they did 

not oppose the amendment which meant conceptually a road could go there.  Commissioner Clifford 

asked about on street parking.  Brad answered that parking is not typically allowed on collector streets.   

Commissioner Clifford asked how the end of the street would be designed was informed that it would 

depend on the application that comes forward and what type of traffic would on the road.  Bob Galati, 

City Engineer, said it could be a roundabout, hammerhead, or a multiple driveway access point and 

that it was unclear at this point.   

Chair Simson asked if Commissioner Copfer had any questions before she asked for public testimony.  

Commissioner Griffin responded that Commissioner Copfer had been called away and he had taken his 

place.  Discussion followed regarding when the change took place, if there was a quorum, and options 

available to the Commission.  

Chair Simson called a recess at 8:46 pm and reconvened at 8:58 pm.   She stated that had James Copfer 

and been in the room and left and Russell Griffin had come into the room we would have seen him.  

Because that did not occur and we don’t know when the exchange took place we do have a quorum 

because Russell is still on the line so we will be able to take action tonight.  I will accept a motion to 

continue this hearing to a date certain so that we are able to proceed with our hearing.  At that time we 

will start the applicant testimony with a full thirty minutes and start from the beginning to get us up to 

speed with your testimony, proponents and opponents will be allowed to testify.   

Julia added that those who could not make it to the continued hearing were welcome to submit written 

testimony up until the night of the hearing.   

Cortney Duke-Driessen, Washington County Counsel asked for clarification on a continuation for 

procedural purposes.   

Planning Commission  Meeting 
January 28, 2014

11



  
Planning Commission DRAFT Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2013 

Page 10 of 10 

 

Julia responded that the Planning Commission will act as though the hearing was opened and 

immediately continued it to a date certain.  She explained that for notice purposes the hearing was 

continued and staff will update the website.   

Motion: From Commissioner John Clifford to continue public hearing PA 13-03 TSP 

Amendment for Adams Avenue north to the date of January 28, 2014. Seconded by 

Commissioner Lisa Walker.  All present Planning Commissioners voted in favor with 

Commissioner Griffin participating by telephone (Vice Chair Copfer and Commissioner Cooke 

were absent. Commissioner Michael Cary did not vote because he had recused himself.) 

Note: Commissioner Walker and Chair Simson responded to comments about timing of testimonies 

from the audience by replying that each of them had timed the speakers when the timer was to be 

activated. 

Commissioner Cary returned to the dais. 

8. Planning Commissioner Announcements 

 

Commissioner Walker mentioned that City Council has a time limit on their meetings and asked if the 

Planning commission could do the same.  She said that it was difficult for the public to be involved 

when meetings go late and she would prefer to have more meetings than ones that go too late.  Brad 

replied that it might be incorporated into the Commission’s by-laws and he would check with legal 

counsel. He understood that Council took a poll at 9:30 to decide if a meeting would carry on.     Julia 

responded that Quasi-judicial decisions have a 120 day time constraints where the Commission would 

need to stay, start earlier, or have additional meetings.   

 

Commissioner Walker commented that the meeting agendas used to have a timeline and on the 

verbiage on the request to speak forms.  Brad answered that staff could aim for a timeline on the 

agenda a new request to speak form would be in place for the next meeting.   

9. Adjourn 

Chair Simson adjourned the meeting at 9:03 pm. 

 

Submitted by: 

_________________________________________     

Kirsten Allen 

Planning Department Program Coordinator 

 

Approval Date: __________________________________ 

 

Planning Commission  Meeting 
January 28, 2014

12



 

 

Old Business  

 

Planning Commission  Meeting 
January 28, 2014

13



City of Sherwood 
22560 SW Pine St. 
Sherwood, OR 97140 
Tel 503-625-5522 
Fax 503-625-5524 
www.sherwoodoregon.gov 
 
Mayor 
Bill Middleton 
 
Council President 
Linda Henderson 
 
Councilors 
Dave Grant 
Robyn Folsom 
Bill Butterfield 
Matt Langer 
Krisanna Clark 
 
 
City Manager  
Joseph Gall, ICMA -CM 
 

 
  
 
2009 Top Ten Selection 
 

 
  
 
2007 18th Best Place to 
Live 
 
 

 

 
Home of the Tualatin River National Wildlife Refuge 

 

 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 

 

DATE: January 21, 2014 

TO: Sherwood Planning Commission 

FROM: Brad Kilby, AICP, Planning Manager 

SUBJECT: PA 13-03 and 13-04 

 

Next Tuesdays hearings will include the continuation of PA 13-03 and 
PA 13-04.  PA 13-04 is a request by Washington County to extend SW 

Baler Avenue north of Tualatin-Sherwood Road as a Collector status 

road within the Sherwood Transportation System Plan (TSP). PA 13-03 

is a request by Washington County to extend SW Langer Farms 

Parkway north of Highway 99W as a Collector status road within the 
TSP.  Both requests were continued from the December 10, 2013 

hearing before the Planning Commission.   

 

PA 13-04 was continued based on a request from Phil Grillo, attorney 

for TakFal properties to continue the hearing to the first or second 

meeting in January. Mr. Grillo indicated that he needed to be able to 
reach an agreement with the County on what alternative access is 

going to look like before the City takes a final action on this 

application.  

 

PA 13-03 was continued because there was not a quorum. PA 13-03 
will include a presentation by staff, the applicant, and any parties in 

favor of, opposed to, or neutral to the proposal.  

 

In both cases, staff has recommended that the Planning Commission 

recommend approval of the proposals to the City Council.    
 

This weeks packet materials include the agenda, minutes from the 

December 10, 2013 hearing to refresh your memory, but will not 

include the original packet items again.  You should already have 

them.  If you do not, you can either review them on the website at: 

 
http://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/sites/default/files/fileattachments/pl

anning_commission/meeting/2223/12.10.13_planning_commission_pa

cket.pdf 

  

or 
 

Planning Commission  Meeting 
January 28, 2014

14

http://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/sites/default/files/fileattachments/planning_commission/meeting/2223/12.10.13_planning_commission_packet.pdf


 

 Page 2 of 2 
Planning Commission Memorandum for January 28, 2014  
Created on 1/21/2014  

 

http://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/planning/project/transportation-system-plan-

amendment-sw-adams-avenue-n 

 
and here: 

 

http://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/planning/project/transportation-system-plan-

amendment-sw-baler-way 

 
If neither of these options work for you, please contact myself or Kirsten, and 

we will get you a new packet.  I can be reached at (503)625-4206 and Kirsten 

can be reached at (503) 625-4215.   

 

Thank you.   

 
 

Planning Commission  Meeting 
January 28, 2014

15

http://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/planning/project/transportation-system-plan-amendment-sw-adams-avenue-n
http://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/planning/project/transportation-system-plan-amendment-sw-baler-way

	001 Planning Commission Meeting  Packet Cover
	002 01.28.14 PC Agenda
	003 Consent Agenda Item
	004 12.10.13 PC Minutes
	005 Old Business Agenda Item
	006 PA 13-03_PA 13-04 Memo to PC 01.21.14
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



